MICROFILM DIVIDER

OMB/RECORDS MANAGEMENT DIVISION
SFN 2033 (2/83) 3M

| ﬁdﬂc&s

ROLL NUMBER

DESCRIPTION




2001 HOUSE APPROPRIATIONS

HB 1022




2001 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEL MINUTES
BILL/RESOLUTION NO, 1131022

House Appropriations Committee
Education and Environment Division

QA Conference Committee

Hlearing Date January 15, 2001

___Tape Numbemi SideA ] siden ] Mewerd
(lof2 b | Stsatd0o0 |

Committee Clerk Signature »«-/uiutf—//ﬂ 3)(‘///[// /(/ e

Minutes:

Representatives Aarsvold, Bochm, Gulleson, Martinson, Monson, Wald, Wentz

Allen Stenchjem: (4190) State Tourism Director. Sce attached.

Joanpe Burke: (5413) State Tourism Deputy Director, See attached.

David Borlaus: (110) President of the ND Foundation. This is truly the opportunity of our life

time. You can not appropriate enough moncy to do the job as we would like, History is our
press agent, Public relations is much more valuable than paid advertising. That is very limiting,
we also neced paid advertising,

Representative Gulleson: (300) 1 think you arc right. We are selling history. What are you

doing for horse enthusiasts, trail riders etc.

David Borlaus: Nothing in particular. The private sector has seen to that, and counting on the

tourism to be the marketing arm,
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Education and Environment Division
Bill/Resolution Number HB 1022
Fiearing Date Junuary 15, 2001

Traey Potter: (530) Executive Direetor of the Fort Abraham Lincoln Foundation. [ recommend
that you do extend more than the Governor has budgeted. The costs per media have sky
rocketed, Advertising works to boost out image. [n the year 2000, there was no out of state
television advertising for ND. There just wasn't the resources. We are ready Lo host tourists.
We need the State to do the out of state marketing,  Advertising works. It will come back to the

State. ;
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much larger than Medora. 1f it takes 900,000 to reach the market o Minneapolis, | strongly

R : o President of the Theodore Roosevelt Medora Foundation, ‘Tourism is

cncourage that that is what we should be doing. We in Medora want to go from 100 motor
coaches to 300 motor coaches. 1t takes money to do that. Within 2 years we have grown 40
percent, 60-65 Percent of their visitors are from ND, the rest are from out of state, We think in 5
years we need to flip flop that. Onee again we need to do the television marketing, Tourism is
much larger than just Mcedora,

Representative Wald: (1490) Governor Hoeven had a new proposal to create a new Department
of Commerce, which includes tourism as 1 understand it. Do you have any feelings you would
like to express to this committee? Would you not loose some of vour identity becoming a part of
a larger umbrella organization?

Randy Hatzenbuhler: I have addressed this with Governor Hoeven, Tourism necds a strong

voice at the table. Tourism can be an important part of economic development, 1 believe there is
that risk of loosing identity, 1 believe the Governor and Lee Peterson when they say we won't.

Sara_Coleman; (1645) Dircctor of Bismarck-Mandan Convention and Visitors Bureau. Sce

Attached.
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Lducation and Environment Division
Bill/Resolution Number 1HB1022
Hearing Date January 15, 2001

Jeff Altizer: Williston's Convention and Visitors Bureau. Our State has a unique opportunity in
bird watching, canocing, and mountain biking, We need increased funding for all of these areas
in tourism, Our competition is Disney Land und the attractions in Canada. People in other states
have never heard about the Lewis and Clark bicentennial. We need the 2 million dollars to
compete,

Jeff Evenson; (2400) President of Western Waters, We have developed the Lewis and Clark
cook book. We are private business men, | support the additional funding. Lewis and Clark is
part of North Dakota’s future. Since September 15th, we have sold 3,000 copies, #t 19.95 a
book, That is 60,000 dollars that has been infused along the Lewis and Clark "Trail. The dollars
spent will come back to ND,

Kristie Fricze; Exceutive Director of the Lewis and Clark Interpreter Center. ‘Thie summer our

visitation increased. Over 70 percent of our visitors are from out of state at this time, Our ND
Tourism Department is our marketing agent we need their support,

Terri Thiel: Executive Director for the Convention Burcau of Lickinson, We have top 5 needs
to increasc out of state marketing funding for tourism budget. So v.¢ arc also asking for the 2
million dollars. We need ND ads in magazines,

Marsha Dupre: (2995) Executive Director of the Minot Convention Burcau. Sce attached.

Representative Wentz: Does anyone clse wish to appear in opposition of HB1022? Secing none

we will close the hearing on HB1022,
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Tape Number Side A r Side B ) ] Meter # ;
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Minutes:

Representatives Bochm, Martinson, Monson, Wald, Wentz,
Representative Martinson: Sec amendment of an exira 750,000 for Lewis and Clark marketing,
This will be a one time deal. If we don’t proprrly market this it will be gone after bicnnium.

Representative Wald: What triggers fiquor on Thanksgiving Day.

Representative Martinson: That came from some of the hospitality people who thought that

would be beneficial to restaurants ete, that are open and [ think that would be all day.
Representative Wentz: | am opposed to it all day fong and it is not just restaurants cvery thing is
open. | would rather that it would not be included, and that it was a separate amendment,
Representative Martinson: That being the case, | would at this time move that all the

amendments except the Thanksgiving, scction 2.

Representative Boehm;: | second the motion.
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Education and Environment Division
Bill/Resolution Number HB 1022
Hearing Date February 06, 2001

Representative _Martinson: We could include language drafied that not to carry to the next

biennium. | will talk to Legislative Council and this will be a part of my motion.
Five yes, 0 ho, and 2 absent.

Representative Martinson: 1 make a motion on do pass as amended.

Representative Bochm: 1 second the motion.

Five yew, 0 no, and 2 absent, Representative Martinson to carry to the tull commiittee.
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Minutes:

The committee was called to order, and opened committee work on HE 1022, the Tourism
budget.

Rep, Martinson: Handed out the amendiments - 18022.0103 - already voted upon, The
committee wanted to view the amendments before the final voting.

Chairman Wentz: The intent clause is the only addition to the other amendment that we had
passed out when we adopted them,

Rep. Martinson: He would like to add the emergency clause to Section #4, just on that scction,
Moves to reconsider the action in adopting the amendments on a previous date, seconded by Rep.
Wald.

Rep. Monson: Asks why the emergency clanse on just scction 4, why not section 3 also?

Rep. Martinson: Could do that too, but it is not as critical, (It is decided that adding in Scction 4

would have a fiscal impact).
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Government Operations Division
Bill/Resolution Number HB 1022
Hearing Date February 8, 2001

Rep. Aarsvold: Believes this amendment, as well as most of the budget, will be very
controversial, and to loose the emergency clause would be counter to what the subcommittee
would like to do. Can we do this so we can insure the emergency clause being passed on the

floor of the house.

Rep. Martinson: Moves to adopt the amendment, and add the emergency clausc to scction 4,

Seconded.

Voice vote adopted the amendment.

Rep. Martinson: Moves DO PASS AS AMENDED. Scconded by Rep. Wald.
Vote on Do Pass as Amended : 7 yes, 0 no. Motion carrics.

Rep. Martinson is assigned to carry this to the full committee.
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Minutes:

. HOUSE APPROPRIATIONS COMMITTEE ACTION ON HBB1022.

Rep. Martinson: Introduced the bill and outlined the amendments to the bill and compared the
executive budget to the proposed amendments. He also outlined some of the new functions of the
Tourism Department. With that Rep, Martinson moved a DO PASS on the amendments,

Scconded Rep. Bochm, Amendment (.0104)

Rep. Timm: Any discussion on the amendments? Where did you come up with the $750,000,
how did you determine that particular amouat of money?

Rep. Martinson: In all honesty, it wasn’t scientific, | don’t mean to be flippant about it, but |
thought it was a figure that we might be able to pass. I seems like a lot of money, but if you look
through some of the documentation that’s handed out, $325,000 extra to market North Dakota is

just such a small amount, Montana Tourism spends $9 miltion dollars a year, compared to our $2

. million and we can't even afford to advertise in the MPLs market because ‘T'elevision
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House Appropriations Committee
Bitl/Resolution Number HB 1022
Hearing Date February 9, 2001

commercials are so expensive, and what the Dept. Has done has concentrated on is bringing
writers in and if you would like to sce some of the stuft or articles that we have received in
international and in national magazines relative to the Lewis & Clark celebration, the Tourism
Department and the Historical Society hosted a camp out a couple of weeks ago and actually
charged people to go to ity and among that group were 4 reporters, one from local North Dakota,
the Mpls Tribune, St. Louis Dispateh, and the Los Angeles Times, so far the Mpls, Tribune
generated a full page in the travel section and two tull pages on the inside, and the Los Angeles
Times generated a full page story , and you have to figure that those types of things arce worth
several thousands of dollars so that's the arca they are looking toward to gencrate more
publicity.

Rep. Wentz: [ think it might be worth mentioning that last session we significantly cut the
dollars that the governor had in the budget for the Lewis & Clark celebration, because we said
that we intended to put those dollars in this session, when it was closer to the actual dates of the
event.

Rep. Timm: My only comment is that, we are looking for money and yet were adding
$750,000.

Rep. Martinson: 1 absolutely agree with you, but I've never really viewed the session to start
until after crossover and 1 rather doubt that the senate will just go along with it right oft the bat,
so we will have it in conference committee and if push comes to shove we can talk about it
another day.

Rep. Kerzman: [ guess I'm going to resist the amendments, I think it is to much of un increase.
Rep. Glassheim: Just to offer support for this, I view some things as expenditures and sone

things as investments, and the point of this is the hope that we will get much more than $750,000
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House Appropriations Committee
Bill/Resolution Number HB 1022
Hearing Date February 9, 2001

back, we want to bring people here, we want to bring money, which all has ecconomic impact to
the state and for the cost, its quite reasonable.

Rep. Warner: { to would like to lend my support to tns bill,

Rep. Timm: Any other discussion? We have a motion on the amendments. All those in favor of

adopting the amendments say AYE. Voice vote. Motion carried. Amendments are adopted. Rep.
Martinson moved a DO PASS as amended. Seconded by Rep. Bochim. Any further discussion?
Roll Call vote will be taken for DO PASS as amended, (20) YES (1) NO. Motion Passes. Rep.
Martinson will carry the bill to the floor.

End of committee action on HB1022,




18022.0102 Prepared by the Legislalive Council staff for
Title, Representative Martinson
February 2, 2001

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1022

Page 1, line 2, alter "department” insert *; to create and enact a new section to chapter 54-34.4
of the North Dakota Century Code, relating lo copyright and trademark; and to amend
and reenact sections 5-02-05 and 54-34.4-04 of the North Dakota Century Code,
relating to celebrations and the motion picture advisory board”

Page 1, line 10, replace "3,220,437" with "3,250,437"
Page 1, remove line 12

Page 1, line 13, replace "655,863" with 1,405 863"
Page 1, line 14, replace "4,960,778" with "5,710,778"
Page 1, line 16, replace "4,597,778" with "5,347,778"
Page 1, after line 16, ingert.

"SECTION 2. AMENDMENT. Section 5-02-05 of the 1999 Supplement to the
North Dakota Century code is amended and reenacted as follows:

5-02-05. Dispensing prohibited on certain days - Penalty. Any person who
dispenses or permits the consumption of alcoholic beverages on licensed premises
after one a.m. on Sundays, before twelve noon on Sundays, or betweer tive hours of
one a.m., and eight a.m. on all other days of the week, or who dispenses aicoholic
beverages or permits consumption of alcoholic beverages on licened premises on

Christmas Day-after-ene-a-m-en-Thanksgiving-Bay; or after six p.m. on Christmas Eve

Is gullty of a c«ass A misdemeanor.

SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Section 54-34.4-04 of the 1999 Supplement to the
North Dakota Centuty Code Is amended and reenacted as follows:

54-34.4-04. North Dakota motion picture development office - Advisory
board. The North Dakota motion picture development office is a part of the tourlsm
department. The office shall promote North Dakota as a location for shooting films,
television shows, documentaries, and commerclals, and shall provide technical
expertise to persons desiring to use the state as a fllmlng location. The diractor of the
tourism department shall appoint staff necessary to fulfill the functions and duties of the
office and shal may appoint an advisory board of no more than ten members to assist
In advising the office and to provide technical expertise to offer prospective film
companles seeking locations and advice. The board shall serve without compensation,
except relmbursement for actual and necessary expenses at the same rate as allowed
other state officers o be paid from funds avallable to the office within the limits of
legislative appropriations,

SECTION 4, A new section to chapter 54-34.4 of the North Dakota Century
Code Is created and enacted as follows:

Q.Qnyﬂgm_n_d_txgs!_e_m_em mmumimmmmﬂ@

M_m_d_mg_gtlon 54- 34 4-03, The frecior may license and charge a fee for photographs
and logos and anvthing with copyright or ttademark protection,”

Page No. 1 18022.0102
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2001 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE ROLL CALL VOTES
BILL/RESOLUTION NO. Appropriations Education and Enviroment Division
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Rep. David Monson —
Rep. Francis J. Wald L
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18022.0104 Prepared by the Legislative Council stalf tor
Title. House Appropriations
Fiscal No. 1 February 8, 2001

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1022

Page 1, line 2, after "department” insert *; to create and enact a new section to chapter 54-34.4
of the North Dakota Century Code, relaling to copyright and trademark; to amend and
reenact section 54-34.4-04 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the motion
picture advisory board; to provide legislative intent; and to declare an emergency"

Page 1, line 10, replace "3,220,437" with "3,250,437"
Page 1, remove line 12

Pasc 1, line 13, replace "655,863" with "1,405,863"
Page 1, line 14, replace "4,960,778" with "5,710,778"
Page 1, line 16, replace "4,597,778" with "5,347,778"
Page 1, after line 16, insert:

"SECTION 2. LEGISLATIVE INTENT. Itis the Intent of the fifty-seventh
legislative assembly that for the purpose of preparing a budget request for the 2003-05
biennium, the base budgel request for the department of tourism not include the
$750,000 appropriation provided by the fifty-seventh legislative assembly for additional
marketing relating to the Lewis and Clark bicentennial.

SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Section 54-34.4-04 of the 1899 Supplement to the
North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

54-34.4-04. North Dakota motion picture development oftfice - Advisory
board. The North Dakota motion picture development office is a part of the tourism
department. The office shall promote North Dakota as a (ocation for shooting films,
telovision shows, documentaries, and commercials, and shall provide technical
expertise to persons desiring to use the state as a filming location, The director of the
tourism department shall appolint staff necessary to fulfill the functions and duties of the
office and skal may appoint an advisory board of no more than ten members to assist
in advising the office and to provide technical expertise to offer prospective film
companles seeking locations and advice. The board shall serve without compensation,
except reimbursement for actual and necessary expenses at the same rate as allowed
other state officers to be pald from funds avatlable to the office within the limits of
legislative appropriations.

SECTION 4. A new section to chapter 54-34.4 of the North Dakota Century
Code Is created and enacted as follows:

Copyright and trademark, The director of the tourism department may obtain

copytight or trademark protection for anything that may be tised to promote the policies
listed In section 54-34,4-03. The director may license and charge a fee for pholographs
and logos and anything with copyright or trademark protection.

SECTION 5. EMERGENCY. Section 4 of this Act is declared to be an
emergency measure.”

Renumber accordingly

Page No. 1 18022.0104




STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT:

House Bitl No. 1022 - Department of Tourism - House Action

LXECUTIVE HOUSE HOUSE
BUDGET CHANGLS VERSION

Salarias any wages $1,039,100 $1.039.100
Opotaling oxpense- 3,220 437 $31 000 3,250,437
Equipment 15.378 15,378
Granls 30,000 {30.000)

Lowia and Clark Bicentenntal 655,863 750,000 1,405,863
Total all lunds $4,960,778 $750.000 $5,710,778
L.oss estimated income 363,000 e e 363,000
QGeneral fund $4,597,778 $750.000 $5.347.278
FTE 11.00 0.00 1100

Dept. 740 - Department of Tourism - Detall of House Changes

DECREASE INCREASE
GRANTS - FUNDING
INCREASE FOR LEWIS TOTAL
OPERATING AND CLARK HOUSE
EXPENSES 1 MARKE TING 2 CHANGES
Salaries and wages
Opatating expenses $30,000 $30,000
Equipment
Grants {30.000) {30.000)
Lewis and Clark Bicentennial — . 150,000 750,000
Total all funds $0 $750.000 $750,0.0
Loss estimated income T
Ganeral fund $0 $750.000 $750,000
F1E 0.00 0.00 0.00

U The recommanded grants ling item of $30,000 is removed and the funding 1s lransferred to the departiment’s operating expensaes line dam. The
grant was praviously provided to the Greater North Dakola Association for publication of the North Dakota Horizons magazine.

2 The recommended appropriation for the Lewis and Clark Bicentennial is increased by $750,000 from the general lund Lo provide addilonal tunding
for marketing relating it the Lewis and Clark Bicentannial event.

This amendment also adds the following sections:

o Section 2 - This saction provides legislative intent that the additional $750,000 general fund
appropriation Included in the House version Is not to be ~onsidered part of the department's base
budget request for the purpose of preparing the budget request for the 2003-05 biennium.

¢+ Saction 3 - This section amends North Dakota Century Code (NDCC) Section 54-34.4-04 1o provide
that the director of the Department of Tourism may appoint an advisory hoard to assist the North
Dakota Mgtion Picture Development Office. Section 54-34.4-04 currently requires the appointment
of such a board.

+ Sactlon 4 - This section creates a new section to NDCC Chapter 54-34.4 1o provide that the director
of the Department of Tourism may obtain copyright or trademark protection for any item used to
promote the state tourism policies, as established by NDCC Section 54-34.4-03.

» Saction 5 « This section provides that Section 4 is an emergency measure and will be effective upen
passage of the bill,

Page No. 2 18022.0104
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2001 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE ROLL CALL VOTES 7 / /
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Representatives S Representatives

Rep. Janet Wentz -Chairman
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{ Rep. Bob Martinson

[Rep. David Monson
Rep. Francis J. Wald
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200! HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE ROLL CALL VOTES
BILL/RESOLUTION NO. H“ B 022

House  APPROPRIATIONS Comniittee

Subcommittee on
or
Conference Committee

Legislative Council Amendment Number D) o) p ASS as anm h@gb_

Action Taken

Motion Made By Seconded
MARTINS ON By BoeHm
Representatives Yes | No Representatives Yes | No
Timm - Chairman el
Wald - Vice Chairman v
Rep - Aarsvold v’ Rep - Koppelman v 4
Rep - Bochm (Ve Rep - Martinson v
Rep - Byerly v Rep - Monson v
Rep - Catrlisle [ Rep - Skarphol (P
Rep - Deizer V Rep - Svedjan [
Rep - Glassheim et Rep - Thoreson (e
Rep - Gulleson | Rep - Warner [
Rep - Huether | Rep - Wentz v
Rep - Kempenich L
Rep - Kerzman ——
Rep - Kliniske (Ve
Total  (Yes) Ad No 4o
Absent D
Floor Assignment MARTI VSO A)

If the vote is on an mmendment, briefly indicate intent;
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Renurnber accordingly
STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT:
House Bill No. 1008 - Department of Agriculture - House Action

EXECUTIVE HOUSE rOUSE
BUDGETY CHANGES VERSION.

Salanes and wages. 05978 s6.2an $IS1A435
Operanng expentes 1.361.357 1363 357
Equoment 30.400 30,400
Seanl 161,700 67700
Bodec of Al Heatn 538,614 538.614
AgG Mehanon 1,075,808 1.075.808
Ag ¥ he CIESIOOM 96.00C ‘56.000
Siate maat speChOn 711964 {80.2r4) B31.750
PLYrTION. 500.000 @

.08 of Daxata 157.050 157.050
Widiie Services 779.694 779,654
Sate Send 559369 599369
NOKICUS WEeOS. 345383 - 1 346 836
TRat 34 wndts. $21.278 574 4386501, $r.92073
~¥S IMatad ncome % 634 291 159 853 6,798 164
Ganeral func $4.640 2683 (£246 394 $4.353.869
(83 5550 Soc 5550

Dept. 602 ~ Department of Agriculture - Detail of House Changes

AQJUST MAKAET  UNFUND 1t FTE FUNDING TOTAL
EQUITY SALARY MEAT INSPECTCR SOCACE rOUSE
INCREASE ! POSITION CHANGE 2 CHANGES
S slees anG wages ($6.287} (36,267}
CIoATatng expensas
Euiprient
Crans
DG O Atmal Healtn
AZ ' Ine Caswroam
Srale meat mspeEChon 1S80.214; {80.24)
SiTartan peagEam
Z e 3t Damgea
Vo Trie Sanaces
Sate Seac
NEuOUS wedds DR — . -
TRy et unds (30287, 1350 214, b= (S86.5G1)
- 3 eAINARET ICOMe —_ : 28307 200 000 158 833
e bane $6.287; S0 ¢$204Q 000} (5246 354,
SR d0e ade I $00

,w-nerw SekCes MM $12 396G 10 56 202, e wnOunt DICWORS 158 4 Tarel ety Gty CIRase K P COMMISEGT anc deDut.
AT TuAGne: '\—.:'ﬂog.r*.naumd.ﬂmc:waul_aquo:im.mamymuse'ﬂivﬁrwmmmsw €7 1 et SeDus

5 CLImendatot 108 e Lanaters Of Agrkaise Tre
LT -ASEC AMENDT ] feXacey 320G 00C O Jotierdi i Moty willt Garte ZnC hED 1unds, 1of T wiife sevaCrs. b Son THe tte A0 e
'»mmhs".ﬁcxx"\emmmmmumm

A sechon 1s 2aged authorizing funds tram the environment and rangeland protechion fund 10 be used tor
harmanmizalion of crop protection product stanaards.

A secton 1s agaed continuing the $350 tiennial pesticidz proauct regisiration tee. Under curent law, the
‘2e would have reverted on July 1, 2001.

A seCtin s aaded requinng the Agriculture Cammussioner, in coSUItation with the acwisory board for me
Sa'e Send program, 10 estabiish fees Or collection of sedect chemicals. The fees are 10 be esmbished 21

a level suthcent ic generate $100.000 duning the 2007-03 biennium. 10 be depostad n e envronment
anc rangeiang protection fund. 1o detray the costs of Proect Sate Send.

A section 1 acded requinng the Agncuiture Commuss:oner, in consuliation with the acwvisory Doard for the
Sate wram 10 research the potential of reCyCiing selected products coilected uncer Presect Sate
Seng. N

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

HB 1022: Appyopriations Committee (Kep. Timm., Chairman) reccmmencs AMENDMENTS
AS FOLLOWS anc wnen 55 amended. recommencs DO PASS (20 YEAS, 1 NAY
G ABFENT AND NQT YCTING. HB 1022 was placed on tre Smain orger on e

Page 1. ne 2 after “department” nsart *1 19 create ana enact a new secuon ¢ chapter 54-32 2
¢t tne Norin Dakota Ceniory C’\ae relanng 10 copyngnl and ragemark; 0 ameng and
reenast secton 54-34 2.0 of the North Dakota Century Coce, relaung 10 me mcton
piclure aawisory board, 1o provide legslauve intent: and 10 declare an emergency”
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25th DAY MONDAY, FEBRUARY 12, 2001 ‘ &

Page 1. bne 10. replace “3.220 437 watk "3.250.457
Page 1. remove bne 12

Page 1. bne 13. replace "655,863" witn 1,205,863
Page 1, ine 14 replace “2 960,778 wath "5.710.778"
Page 1, ine 16, replace "4 597 778" wih "5.347,776"
Page 1. after kne 16, insert:

“SECTION 2. LEGISLATIVE INTENT. & © tThe memt of e fny-sevenm
legsslative assembiy That for the purpose of prepanng 2 budget request Tor tTe 200305
iennaum, the base Dudgetl request tor the cepriment of unsm X mckaoe e
$750.000 appropnabon powded by the ity-sevent: legsiatve assemthy 1or aockponas
markeang relating 1o the Lewrs 2na Clark Sucentermal.

SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Secuon 53-38 3-02 of the 1939 Supplement © Tw
North Dakota Centiry Code is amended and reenacted as tokows:

S4-34.4-04. Nocth Dakota motion pscturs development office - Adwmsory
board. The North Dakota mahon peCiute develchment otMaoe & 2 part of Te Wursm
ceparmment. The othce shafl promote North Dahita as A DCabon 1or shoong tems
teievision shows, GCCumentanes. anC COMMeraais. ant shall prowde lechca.
Sxperse 10 Persons gesrmg 1o use e swale as § Mmng otanon. The grectcr of The
tounsm cepartment shak agpant stall necessary to Ll the funcuons an Gubes o the
otfice and shakmay appont an acvesory Doard of no mate Tan ten members 10 assSt N
agvising the othoe and 1 rovioe techncal expertise 1o dtier Drospectve tin companees
seeng locatons and agwice. The Doard shal senve wihoul COMPEnS3IhOn. exteps
resmbursement $or actusl and NEeCeSSary expenses at e same rale as aliowed other
state otficers 10 pe pad trom tuncs avaidadle 10 he Otheoe walhen he kmas of legesiatve
apprcpnatons.

SECTION 4. A new secoon 1o chapeer 53-33.3 of me Nossn Bawota Cenzuty
Caode is createq and enactec &S 1olows:
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SECTION 5. EMERGENCY. Secion € of s A & CoGarec © D2 an
emergency measue -

Penumoer accoroingly
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House Bl No. 1022 - Department of Tourrsin - House Acton
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Tris amendment alsc aods the foliowing sectians:

Secuor 2 - TRis sesuen provides legslatve mient that the acomonal $750.0CT generg! tunc
ADPeasnaNon TiuGEd 0 NS HCUSR VErSion 1§ nol iC De considered part of the depatment’s base
Tucge! fequest 1ar e purpdse o' prepanng the pucget request tor the 2502-05 pienmm

« Secnon I - Tus secucn amengs Nomah Dakota Century Coce {(NDCC) Secticn 54-34.4-04 10 provige
izt e 2wralier ot the Depanment of Tounsm may agpoint an adwiscry board 1o assisT the Norm
Sanora Mguen Pcture Develgpment Ottice. Section 54-33.4-04 currently requires the apgeimiment
of such 2 Beara.

= Sacuon 4 - Trus section creates a new secuon to NOCC Chapter 53-34.4 1o prowide nal the gredtar
¢t me Depanmen: of Tounsm may obtain copyright or trademark protection tor any item usecC ¢
promgte tng State tourism p rhicies. as estadlished by NDCC Section 54-34.4-03

Secuon 5 - This secugn provices that Secugcn 4 1§ an emergency measuse and will be ettelive uL~ ™
£3ssageral me Dui.

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE
B 1023: Appropriations Committee {Rep. Timm, Chairman) recommencs AMENDMENTS
AS FOLLOWS anc wner sg amended recammends DO PASS 115 YEAS. S NAYS.
1 ABRSENT AND NOT VCTING; HE 1523 was placted on the Sixth orger on the
caiencar.
Sage 1. hne 7. replace M2 irsl Tsechion” win “sectons” and after "54-27-257 imnsent "ang
81-01-26.17
Page . Ine 9. zher TtungT msert T. suppiemenung the waler resgurces of eastemn Nerth
ake:a.” ang aller the semicoign insert "0 provide an exempuon from payment ¢t {ees:
ng”

O

B

Fage 1. line 1€, replace "8.966.759" with "9.066.758"
Page . line 19. repiace "6.477.4857 with "6.503,485"
Sage 1. kne 20, repiace "514 833" with "499.833"
Bage 1. ine 22. replace "22.625.067 wmith "22.375.067
Page 2. ine 2, replace "93.517 3317 with "93 878.3417
Page 6. atter ine 8. insen

"SECT:ON 16. AMENDMENT. Secticn 61-01-25.1 of the 1339 Supplement tc
me ~orm Danota Centem, Code s amengdeq and reenacied as {oilows

§1-01-26.1. Findings and declaration of poiicy - Water 10 eastern North
Dakota a critical pnonty - Waler suppiementancn stuc, - Employment ¢! statf, The
£ 8. 3‘- K 2550, e “s nat rwan, arm..\c ang rcc.; ties in e.iS!i"r‘ \IO’!h Danota g not

1715 aiso tound r’u: smer areas ang jocatues in eastern Nomn Dano!a do not have
suthoent guanthes ! water lo ensure a dependable. long-lorm water suppiy  The
l2gislatve assempiy ‘urtner knds that supplementaton of the waler resgurces of eastemn
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2001 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEL MINUTES

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. 1H31022

Senate Appropriations Committee
L Conference Committee

Hearing Date February 21, 2001

Mclc: //
l 8 Sl (

100-140

nuw Number | SideA | siden |
lupc Hz B L X

o o 4 st e - - ,&-//1,.—-—»- e 7

| Committee Clerk Sluuuuu é/ ’// C e 7 ("
Minutes:

Senator Nething opened the hearing on HBT0O22 - Tourism Department,

Allan Stenehjem, Director of Tourism for North Dakota testified in support of the bill which

provides a general fund appropriation for defraying the expenses for the State Tourism

Department ( a copy of the written testimony is attached). Copics of newspaper and magazine
articles describing tourism activitics in ND , while at a international meeting in Norway, were
distributed for the review of the committee,  He distributed copies of the “Vittles in the Vast

Lane” (a copy is attached). Advertising good places to cat in ND - which may be somewhat out

of the way for the ordinary traveler.

Scnator Solberg: Have you checked about highway signs? Hear the Lady Bird story about

stopping them?




Page 2

Senate Appropriations Committee
Bill/Resolution Number HIB1022
Fearing Date February 21, 2001

Senator Andrist: ‘To amplify some on Senator Solberg’s stutement -- traftie does stop when they
read billboards --- does attraet individuals - have you checked with the transportation
department regarding some, modify some?

Allan Stenghjem: We seek every opportunity to partner -- 2 weeks into the job someone
indicated the sign -- went to the departiment of transportation -- there is a need to idemtity
businesses, tourism spots.

Senator Thane: s it your responsibility or the Department of Transportation for the now closed

touristm information center on interstate 297 Used to be alot of tourism information, now
climinated?

Allan Stenehjein: Tourism did have the funds - then funding was cuts now the department of
transportation’s responsibility.

Juanne Burke, Deputy Director of North Dakota Tourism: This is example ol one of the ways we

work with other agencics-- the Department of Transportation has responsibility for all rest stops,
whether new or established --- we have the information within cach rest stop at no expense to our

department,

Joanne Burke, Deputy Ditector of North Dakota Tourism, spoke on the Lewis and Clark Trail

promotion within the department (a copy of her written testimony is attached). She distributed
copics of newspaper articles from Los Angeles and Minncapolis, regarding tourism activities in
North Dakota. She also made available for review a copy of the marketing plan used by the
department. She described the brochure which was printed along with several other sponsors
which will be placed at strategic spots along the Lewis ond Clark Trail and will be placed at all

interpretive centers --- important that all the information be uniform (no copy available for the

files).




Page 3

Senate Appropristions Committes
Bill/Resolution Number HB 1022
Hearing Date February 21, 2001

Senptor Robinson: Merit on news releases? Doing 'TV? Airline magazines? Seems the airlines
would/ecould profit from visits to NiJ,

Joanne Burke: Al those things we've considered or are considering,

Senator Lindags: Know you've talked about Europe -- but what about the trav- lers trony the far

cust?

Joanne Burke: We have used very specific research to decide areas we need to get to --- using our

dollars more cost eftective in the markets we aire now focused on.

Senator Grindberg: Total dollac. in the Lewis and Clark project?

Joanne Burke: 1.2 million

Allap Stenehjem: 655 thousand: | FTE: 750 thousand promotional dolars

Senator Nething: 1915 --- the 1.4/5 thousand in there?

Joanne Burke: All in there.

Senator Grindberg: Lewis and Clark portion? House not consider 750 thousand gift --- 655

thousand included FTE?

Scnator Grindberg: % M ---more ad space?

Allan Stenchjem: We were caught short -- project should have begun 2 years ago --- House felt

the 750 thousand necded.

Scnator Grindberg: Expect the Departiment of Commerce bill which adds 100 thousand for the
Lewis and Clark project -- perhaps will be in conference committee -- the discussion will be
around the 650 thousand difference--- just a statement, be sure to document, ready to respond to

questions. It’s not cutting what’s not in budget -- but understand, if the department of commerce

bill is killed -- back to tourism,
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Senate Appropriations Committee
Bill/Resolution Number HB1022
Hearing Date Febraary 21, 2001

Ablan Stepehjemy: Hope degisluture recognized funding for Lewis and Clark is an opportunity ---
need 1o put dollars behind us. Need to move forward -- not backward, i great opportunity.

Setor Robipson: Lewis and Clark whole? TV media dollars?

Allan Stenehjem: Currently don’tsee it happening -- need to penetrate gross rating points -- 250
thousand 5 years ago now cost 300 thousand for 1000 gross points, Need 1o promote where we
can best use our dollars,

Senator Thane: Sent time on web site development?

Allan Stenehjeny: Work on the web site is a priority, Been 6-8 years sipee it was work on ---

looking at l'CdOfI.Ig it, 70% of travelers go to web sites <=« hopetully we can form pm‘lm:l‘sh-ips --
perhaps with the higher education regarding marketing strategices,
Senator Nething: See removal of 30,000 for the Horizons magazine? Reaction?
fun Stenchjem: None; we have four line items --- we will need to review and see what's best
: way to spend dollars; if Horizons is one of them; we'll see that we do not discontinue,
Senator Nething: Couple of objectives -- not only in state but out of state and perhaps even
internationally,

Allan Stenchjem: Yes, move in that direction.

David Borlaug (Lobbyist #368) North Dakota Lewis and Clark Bicentennial Foundation, Ine.,

spoke in support of HB1022, He distributed bookmarks (one is attached).

Senator Schobinger: Web linked to tourism?

David Borlaug: Yes working on it; cost is high but believe it is right thing to do.
Ron Wanner, Golden Valley rancher and owner of the Knife River Ranch Vacations testified in
support of HB1022, He also attended the Norway conference at a personal expense of #3,500.

No bookings from it thus far, but great exposure, learning cxperience,
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Scenate Appropriations Commitiee
Bill/Resolution Number HI31022
Hearing Date February 21, 2001

‘Lraey Porter, Fort Lincoln Foundation, testified in support of HBLO22, Cost ol everything is
going up --- tourism dollars seem flat --- little for marketing,  Need 1o make the investiment--
brings many dollars back to the North Dakota cconomy.,

Sarg Otte Coleman, Bismurck-Mandan CVB, testified in support -« especiudly of the Lewis and
Clark project, Comparison figures show that many citics spend more on tourisn than we do as a
state (o copy of her wirtten testimony is attached).

Sepator Nethipg: We understand the need, you understand the need -- bow do we get the word

out to the volers?

Sara Otte Coleman: Is difficult -- we are just beginning 1o work on this -- educating others to

understand the value of tourism,

Senator Thane: Have you been in the school system . ith your story?

Sara Otte Colemun: We do, during national tourism wecek we had junior/senior high school
students design T-shirts --- had them judged by local artist --- sold them, and had o great story on
local television.

Bill Shalhoob (Lobbyist #301) North Dakota Hospitality Association, testificd in support of the
bill. Hopes the legislature looks favorably on this. Approximately 3 percent of revenues are
spent on marketing by his association, So if' 74 million generated, 3 pereent would be about 21
M --- perhaps a little out of the current range,

Senator Nething: But you’re looking at profit versus service --- to promote tourism, we need to
reach the voters?

Bill Shalhoob: Tourism hasn’t taken care of itself -- needs to tell its story -- need to advance

partnerships ---individuals need to come together to SELL ND,




Page 6

Senate Appropriations Committee
Bill/Resolution Number 1{B81022
Hearing Date February 21, 2001

Jett Altizer, Williston, estified in support of HIBLO22 ¢ a copy of his written testimony is

attuched), (Also attached is a copy of the School of Forestry, The university of NMontana in
Missoula -- The Institute for Tourism and Reereation Reseqarch report he referred to in his
testimony),

No additiona testimony; hearing closed by Senator Nething,.

3-28-01 Full Committee Action (Tape #1, Side A, Meter 1 44,3-54.7; Tape #1, Side 13, Meter #
0.0-0.7)

Senator Nething reopened the hearing on HB1022- Tourism Department.

Senator Andrist, Chair of the Subcommittee reported on the Committee’s finding.  Discussion;
followed by a motion to move the amendments (#108022.0201) as presented by the Commitiee,
by Senator Andrist; seconded by Senator Grindberg, Discussion; verbal vote moved the
adoption of the amendments. Discussion on the bill. Senator Andrist moved a DO NO'T PASS
AS AMENDED; Senator Grindberg seconded the motion. Discussion; call for the vote, Roll
Call Vote: 14 yes; 0 no; 0 absent and not voting.

Senator Andrist accepted the floor assignment.
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Date: .o ..fc/(/

Roll Call Votew:

W A

2001 SENATE STANDING COMMITTE }l))'l CAL l VOTFES
BILL/RESOLUTION NO.

Senate  Appropriations Comnuittee

Subcommitteeon

or
Conference Committeo

Legislative Council Amendment Number ",j:_(_;j;___\“ AT o

Action Taken (e /7" / /’/'.’_'_.A..S_.-.':.-f_.-:,.A?f.;_.‘@._-;‘fﬁ.vf.';'f;’:'é.;_.':,'.s';‘l?:_:z.“r._-;-:..v‘.,._,,__...

) (-
Motion Made By | /fn) , Scconded L) g
Senataf 722 et By _Senator 7 ’2/5_ |

N\

Senators No Senators Yes | No
Dave Nothing, Chairman [ ]
Ken Solberg, Vice-Chairman i
Randy A. Schobinger v
Elroy N, Lindaas il
Harvey Tallackson v
Larry J, Robinson -
Steven W. Tomac L
Joel C, Heitkamp v
Tony Grindberg L |
Russell T, Thane v
Ed Kringstad L
Ray Holmberg L
Bill Bowman L7
ﬂ John M, Andrist d

Total  Yes / // No e
7
Absgent =3

Floor Assignment _ Senator éﬁ%{(ﬂ/f’

[f the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent;




18022.0201 Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for
Title, Senator Andrist
Fiscal No. 1 March 18, 2001

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1022

Page 1, after line 14, ingert.
"Granls 100,000"
Page 1, line 15, replace "1.406,863" with "755.863"
Page 1, line 16, replace "5,710,778" with "5,160.778"
Page 1, line 18, replace "5,347,778" with "4,797,778"
Page 1, line 21, replace "$750,000" with "$100,000"
Renumber accordingly
STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT:

House BIll No. 1022 - Department of Tourism - Senate Action

EXECUTIVE HOUSE SENATE SENATE

BUDQET VERSICN CHANQES VERSION
Salarles and wanes $1,039,100 $1,039,100 $1.039,100
Oparating uxpenses 3,220,437 3,260,437 3,260,437
Equipment 16,378 16,378 16,378
Granls 30,000 $100.000 100,000
Lewis ang Clark Bicentennial 655,083 1,405,883 {850,000) 755,883
Tolal all lunds $4.960,778 $5.710,778 ($550,000) $5.160,778
Less estimated income 363,000 363,000 SO 363,000
Genaeral lund $4,597,778 $6,47.778 ($550,000) $4,797.778
FTE 11.00 11.00 0.00 11.00

Dept. 740 - Department of Tourism - Delall of Senate Changes

REDUCE
FROPOSED
ADD GRANT FOR  INCREASE FOR
COWBOY HALL OF  LEWIS AND TOTAL SENATE

FAME CLARK | CHANGES
Salaries and wages
Operaling expenses
Equipment
Grants $100.000 $100.000
Lewis and Clark Bicentennial - ($650,000) {650,000)
Total all funds $100,000 ($650,000) {$650,000)
Less astimated Income e
Ganeral lung $100,000 ($850,000) {$550,000)
FTE 0.00 0.00 0.00

I The House version increased the Schafer executive racammendation by $750.000 for marketing relaling to the Lewis and Clark Bicentannial. The
Senate verslan reduces the House varsion by $660,000, to provide $100,000 more than the Schaler execuliva recommandation fot Lewis and Clark

1argeted markeling.

Page No. 1 18022.0201
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Date; ")" -".‘f".‘/’/ :
. Roll Call Vote #f:

2001 SENATE STANDING (.’()Mx\‘ll'l"l‘liy OLL CALL VOTES
BILL/RESOLUTION NO. &/ £ 27 7.2

Scnate  Appropriations Conumiliee

Subcommittee on
or
Conference Committee

, . . \ /,// B L .Y . /
Legislative Council Amendment Number 7 7 & 7@~ c/ S
v dl Pry

7 ’} ) . . ,,',2")'.,'7 .
s .Qfﬁés.m( L teem o 0l

Aclion Taken

Motion Made By \ Seconded Py (/’/g . ,/ .
Senataf 7 200 By Senator 1T T4
Sensators Yes | No Senators Yes | No
ll)uvc Nething, Chairman L
9 Ken Solberg, Vice-Chairman ' ) l
Randy A, Schobinger s B ’
Eltoy N. Lindaas o ) i
Harvey Tallackson 7~ YW AVAAS
{ Larry J. Robinson /. {1 .1
[_.icvcn W. Tomac [ /h JE
Joc! C. Heitkamp | 4 7
FTony Grindberg,  \ i
Russell T. Thane ]
Ed Kringstad
Ray Holmberg
Bill Bowman
John M. Andrist |

Total Yes No

Absent

Floor Assignment _ Senator

. If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent:




REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE (410) Module No: SR-54-7044

March 28, 2001 3:22 p.m, Carrler: Andrist
Insert LC: 18022,0201 Title: .0300

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE
HB 1022, as engrossed: Appropriations Committee (Sen. Nething, Chairman)
tecommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommonds
DO NOT PASS (14 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). Engrossed
HB 1022 was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar,

Page 1, alter line 14, insert:
"Grants 100,000"

Page 1, line 15, replace "1,405,863" with "755,863"
Page 1, line 16, replace "5,710,778" with "5,160,778"
Page 1, line 18, replace "5,347,778" with "4,797,778"
Page 1, line 21, replace "$750,000" with "$100,000"
Renumber accordingly

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT:

House Blll No. 1022 - Department of Tourism - Senate Action

EXECUTIVE HOUSE SENATE SENATE

BUDGET VERSION CHANGES VERGION
Salaries and wagos $1,039,100 $1,034,100 $1.039,100
Oparaling expenses 3,220,437 3,260,437 3,250,437
Equipment 15,376 16,378 16,378
Gran|s 30,000 $100.000 100,000
Lowis and Clark Blcantennial £55,863 1,405,863 {650,000) 765863
Total all lunds $4,080,778 $6,710,778 {$550.000) $6.160,778
Less estimated Income 363,000 363,000 363,000
Qeneral lund $4,697,778 $6,347,778 ($560,000) $4,797,278
FTE 11.00 14.00 0.00 11.00

Dept. 740 - Department of Tourism - Detail of Senate Changes

REDUCE
PROPOSED
ADD GRANT FOR  INCREASE FOR
COWBOY HALLOF  LEWIS AND TOTAL SENATE

FAME CLARK 1 CHANGES
Salarles and wages
Oparating expenses
Equipment
Grants $100,000 $100,000
Lewis and Clark Bicentennial — ($7 -1, 000) (650,000)
Tolal all funds $100,000 +50,000) {$650,000)
Less esiimated income
General fund $100,000 {$650,000) ($550,000)
FTE 0.00 0.00 0.00

1 The House version Increased the Schafer execulive recommendatlon by $760,000 for marketing relating to the Lawis and Clark Bicentennial. The
Senate verslon reduces the House verslon by $650,000, to provide $100,000 more than tha Schaler execulive recommendation for Lewis and

Clark targeted marketing.

(2) DESK, (3) COMM Page No. 1 SH-54-7044




2001 TESTIMONY
HB 1022




Prepared by the North Dakota Legislative Council
staff for House Appropriations - Education and

Environment Division
January 15, 2001

.&artment 740 - Tourism Department
use Bill No. 1022

FTE Positions General Fund Other Funds Total
2001-03 Schafer Executive Budget 11.00 $4,597,778 $363,000 $4,960,778
1999-2001 Legislative Appropriations 11.00 4,016,000 363,000 4,379,000"
Increase (Decrease) 0.00 $581,778 $0 $581,778
2001-03 Hoaven Executive Budget 0.00 $0 $0 $0
Hoeven Increase (Decrease) to Schafer (11.00) ($4,597,778) ($363,000) ($4,960,778)

'The 1999-2001 appropriation amounts include $3,106 from the general fund for the agency's share of the $5.4 million funding pool
appropriated to the Office of Management and Budget (OMB) for speacial market equity adjustments for classified employees and
$868 from the general fund for the agency's share of the $1.4 million funding pool appropriated to OMB for assisting agencies in

providing $35 per month minimum salary Increases In July 1999 and July 2000.

Major Schafer Recommendations Affecting Tourism Department 2001-03 Budget
General Fund Other Funds

1. Provides funding for an equity salary Increase of $145 per manth for the $2,963
dlrector effective January 1, 2002 (the amount included in the executive
budget Is $83 less than the required amount of $3,046),

2. Provides funding for an equity salary Increase of $257 per month for the $7,860

deputy director effective January 1, 2002 (the amount included in the
executive budget Is $2,458 more than the required amount of $5,402).

. Provides $655,863 for Initlatives relating to the Lewis and Clark
Blcentennial, a general fund increase of $531,868 compared to the
1998-2001 blennlum appropriation of $123,095:

1 FTE tourlsm marketing speclalist || $110,793
Operating expenses for television advertisin 500,000
Other operating expenses 45,070
Total recommended appropriation $655,863

Major Hoeven Recommendations Affecting Tourism Department
Compared to the 8ill as Introduced (Schafer Budget)

General Fund Other Funds

1. Ellminates the Tourism Department and includes those duties In the ($4,597,778) ($363,000)
proposed Dapartment of Commarce, {Recommended funding for the
Department of Commerce s $60.97 million ($17.4 million from the
general fund; $43.6 milllon from other funds), which Is $3.5 milllon
($2.4 milllon from the general fund; $1.1 mililon from other funds) less
than the Schafer recommendation for the combined agencies of the
Tourism Deparimant, the Division of Community Services, and the
Department of Economic Devalopment and Finance.)

Major Legisiation Affecting the Tourlsm Department

Total
$2,963

$7,860

$110,793
500,000
45,070

$655,863

Total
($4,960,778)

Senals Blll No. 2032 - This blll consolidates the Division nf Community Services, the Department of Economic Davelopmant and

Finance, and the Tourlsm Depariment Into a depariment of commerce.




Prepared by the North Dakola Legistative Council
staff for Senate Appropriations
February 19, 2001

Department 740 - Tourism Department
ouse Bill No. 1022

FTE Positions General Fund Other Funds Total
2001-03 Schafer Executive Budget 11.00 $4,597,778 $363,000 $4.960,778
1999-2001 Legislative Appropriaflons . 11.00 4,016,000 363,000 4,379,000"
Increase (Decrease) 0.00 $581,778 . cg $581,778
2001-03 Hoeven Executive Budget 0.00 $0 $0 $0
Hoeven Increase (Decrease) to Schafer : (11.00) (84,697,778} {$363,000) ($4,960,778)

' The 1999-2001 appropriation amounts Include $3,106 from the general fung for the agency's share of the $5.4 million funding pool
appropriated to the Office of Management and Budget (OMB) for special market equity adjustments for classified employees and
$868 from the general fund for the agency's share of the $1.4 million funding pocl appropriated to OMB for assisting agencies in
providing $35 per month minimum salary increases In July 1999 and July 2000.

Major Schafer Recommendations Affecting Tourism Department 2001-03 Budget
General Fund Other Funds Total
1. Provides funding for an equity salary increase of $145 per month for the $2,963 $2,963

director effective January 1, 2002 (the amount included in the executive
budget is $83 less than the required amount of $3,046).

2. Provides funding for an equity salary increase of $257 per month for the $7,860 $7,800

deputy director effective January 1, 2002 (the amount included in the
. executive budget is $2,458 more than the required amount of $5,402).

3. Provides $655,863 for initlatives relating to the Lewis and Clark
Bicentennial, a general fund increase of $531,868 compared ' the
1999-2001 blennium appropriation of $123,995: (The Housc 1ncreased
this line ltem by $750,000 from the general fund for additional Lewls
and Clark Blcentennial markeling.)

1 FTE tourism marketing specialist il $110,793 $110,793
Operating expenses for television adverising 500,000 500,000
Other operating expensces 45070 45070
Total recommended appropriation $655,863 $655,863

Major Hoeven Recommendations Affecting Tourlsm Department
Compared to the Bill as Introduced (Schafer Budget)

General Fund Other Funds Total
1. Eliminates the Tourism Depariment and Includes those duties in the ($4.597,778) ($363,000) ($4,960,778)
proposed Department of Commerce. [Recommended funding for the
Depariment of Commerce Is $60.97 mitlion ($17.4 million from the
general fund; $43.6 milllon from other fundis), which Is $3.5 million
($2.4 million from the general fund; $1.1 million from other funds) less
than the Schafer recommendation for the combined agencles of the
Tourlsm Depariment, the Division of Community Sarvices, and the
Depanment ¢i Economic Development and Finance.)

Major Legislation Affecting the Tourism Department

Senate Bill No, 2032 - This bill consolidates the Diviston of Community Services, lhe Department of Economic Davelopment and
Financa, and the Tourlsm Dapariment Into a proposed new agency, the Depariment of Commerce.
Senate 8ill No. 2186 - As Introduced, this bill provided a $100,000 general fund appropriation lo the Tourism Depariment for a grant to

the North Dakota Cowboy Hall of Fame. As amanded by the Senate Appropriations Committee, this bill provides legistative inlent that
$100,000 of the grants line Itom approprinted to the Tourism Division of the Dopadmont of Commerce bo used to provide 8 grant to the

Cowboy Haoll of Fame,




STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT:

Department of Toutism
Salnries and wages
Operating expenses
liquipment
Cirats
Lewis ind Clnk

bieentennial

Total all funds
|.ess estitmated ivcome
Cenerat fund
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Bill Total
Total sl funds
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General fund
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ouse Bil* No. 1022 - Funding Summary
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Ihe recommended grants line item of $30.000 is removed and the funding s transferred o the department's operating expenses line
em. The grant was previously provided to the Greater North Dakota Association for publication of the North Dakota Horizons
magazine.

Y. s ' . . . . : T Ly ~ - .
* The recommended appropriation for the Lewis and Clark Bicentennial is increased by $750.000 from the general fund for prov ide
additional funding for marketing relating to the Lewis and Clark Bicentennial event,

This amendment also adds the following sections:

e Section 2 - This section provides legistative intent that the additional $750,000 general fund appropriation included i e House
version is not 1o be considered part of the department's base budget Tor the purpose of submitted the budget tequest for the 2003
{5 biennium,

¢ Section 3 - This section amends NDCC Section 54-34.4-04 to provide that the director of the Department of Tourism may appoint
an advisory board to assist the North Dakota motion picture development olfice. Section 54-34.4-04 currently requires the
appointment of such a board.

o  Section 4 - This section creates a new section 1o NDCC Chapter S4-34.4 1o provide that the divector of the Department of ‘Tourism
may obtain copyright or trademark protection for any item used to promote the state tourism policies, as established by NDCC
Scction 54-34.4-03.

e Section § - This section provides that Section 4 is an emergeney measure and will be effective upon passage of the bitl,




Testimony of Allan Stenehjem, State Tourism Director
House Appropriations Committee
HB 1022

Madam Chair and members of the committee, I am Allan Stenchjem, Director of Tourism
for North Dakota and I'm here in support of House Bill 1022 which provides a general
fund appropriation of $4,597,788 for defraying the expenses and opportunity costs of the
State Tourism Department, This amount added to special funds of $363,000 gives the

department authority to spend up to $4,960,778.

I am surc you are all aware of the huge opportunity we now have before us with the
approaching commemoration of the Lewis & Clark Corps of Discovery Bicentennial.
Our current budget request is for an increase of $531,868 over last biennium’s budget.
We feel this budget increase is timely and appropriate to allow us to take advantage of
this unique opportunity that now exists for North Dakota, Joanne Burke, Deputy Director
of the Tourism Department will go in further detail on specific activities the Department
will be doing relative to Lewis & Clark. The increase in funding for Lewis & Clark will:
¢ Provide continued funding for one position to be involved with the
Lewis & Clark Bicentennial promotion.
¢ Provide funding to implement the agency’s marketing plan
specifically related to Lewis & Clark.
Tourism is North Dakota’s third largest industry. There are nearly 20,000 jobs generated

directly or indirectly by the tourism industry, Total visitor expenditures are over the once




billion-dollar mark annually. State sales tax revenue directly attributable to tourism is

over $30 million annually and gasoline tax receipts arc over $42 million annually.

Tourism is a growing industry in North Dakota. Tourism is also a growing industry

nationally and internationally. The Travel Industry Association of America projects that
expenditures by national and international travelers will exceed $549 billion in 2000, an
increase of over 65 percent since 1990. In order for North Dakota to expand its tourism

industry we need to have a strong presence in this competitive national and international

market.

Tourism is made up of attractions such as Medora, the International Peace Garden,
Dinosaur Muscum, Custer House, On-A-Slant Indian Village, the Lewis and Clark
Interpretive Center and Fort Union, Tourism is also made up of small businesses
throughout the state...businesses in rural North Dakota....working ranches, guides,
outfitters, bed and breakfasts, hotels, marinas, horseback riding concessionaires,
restaurants, canoe rentals to name just a few. All these attractions and businesses depend
on tourists. There is no way they can individually afford to do the advertising to be

competitive in a global market. We are the state’s marketing agent.

The Tourism Department spends its $3.2 million marketing budget promoting the North
Dakota tourism industry, To be effective with these dollars the Tourisin Department
identifics markets that can be influenced with an effective campaign, ..markets that we

can influence to see North Dakota as a travel destination.  Current rescarch tells us that




70 percent of people travel within 500 miles of their home. For North Dakota that

includes the Minneapolis/ St. Paul metropolitan area with a population base of nearly onc
million people. This is a market that we are not able to effectively penetrate with the

limited resources we have. It would cost us $900,00 per bienniutn to run an effective

television campaign,

What we have successfully done is be very diligent with our marketing dollars and

identified markets that we can influence to make North Dakota a travel destination.




International

Tourism has made a commitment to the international market. Europeans have 4-6 weeks
mandated vacations and take their vacations very seriously. The US is a travel
destination for them, they stay longer and spend more money than the domestic traveler.
Because of our strong heritage ties to Norway, North Dakota is a destination for the
Scandinavian market.

Selling to the international market is a long-term process. Our response in this market has
been overwhelming. In a short period of time we have seen visitors to the state as a
result of our efforts.

One of the ways we measure our success is by listings in tour operator catalogs.
However, North Dakota had listings with tour operators within a year. We have hosted
tour operators and media that hel» us sell North Dakota. Our quick success in Norway
has lead to expansion in the Scandinavian market. Last year we hosted a Swedish fitm
crew that filmed two travel segments for a popular Swedish television show that aired to
an audience of 1.5 million. We have just returned from travel shows in Norway, Sweten

and Finland.

This is a brochure that we produced for that market,

Motorcvach

In addition to attending motorcoach market tradeshows we develop promotional picces
that keep North Dakota out in front of them. This is one of the picces we mailed to 400
motorcoach tour operators and 200 intetnational tour operators and media.

National

Nationally we have invested marketing dollars to promote the Maah Daah Hey Trail.
This is a 96-mile trail that connects the north and south units of Theodore Roosevelt
National Park running through the Little Missouri National Grasslands. This non-
motorized trail is for mountain biking, horseback riding and hiking. It has reccived
national attention as the new trail in the US. National Geographic Adventure listed the
top 100 outdoor adventures in America, Number one is rafting the Colorado through the
Grand Canyon. Maah Daah Hey trail was number 24...ahead of the Boundary Water
atea in MN, The Maah Daah Hey is a destination for outdoor Adventists. Last summer
we hosted six media people who rode the trail and wrote articles in major mountain
biking magazines. Most of the attention now is for mountain biking but we are seeing

more horseback riding and hiking,




In State

One of the ways that we can effect travel to rural areas is to get pcople to travel off-the-
beaten path to sce and feel the heart of North Dakota’s small towns. Everyone loves to
eat. And what's better than having some Vittles in the Vast Lanc.

Local

Tourism is involved in partnerships with local communities to help them deveiop
destination travel, In 2002 Bismarck/Mandan is hosting the international curling
championship. One of the purposes is not to just get people here for these cvents but to
get them to talk about North Dakota when they go home. That’s why we get involved in
local partnerships. The number one reason people choose a travel destination is through

word of mouth.




Testimony of Joanne Burke
State Tourism Deputy Director
House Appropriations Committee

HB 1022

Madam Chair and members of the committee, Tam Joanne Burke, Deputy Director of
North Dakota Tourism. [ am the person in the Tourism Department who has worked with
the Lewis and Clark Trail promotion. I will explain how the Tourism Department has
used marketing dollars for ©.ewis and Clark promotion and how we would spend the

additional $500,000 requested for Lewis and Clark promotion in this budget.

First some background to understand our marketing strategy. Our rescarch tells us that
the people most likely to follow the Lewis and Clark Trail are those that have an
awareness of the Bicentennial Commemoration. These people are history buffs. History
buffs take vacations to gain knowledge of history and want to see and do new things that
enrich their perspective on life, They are more likely to travel to undiscovered
destinations, They tend to travel more frequently, are well educated and have a higher
median income. Their preferred method of travel is by automobile. There is a close
relationship between income, amount of travel and heavy magazine readership. This is

the key market that we can influence to travel the Lewis and Clark Trail in North Dakotu

We know that people most interested in following the Lewis and Clark Trail have u

strong interest in Sakakawea and the history and culture of the Native People. North




Dakota is where Lewis and Clark met Sakakawea. This is where her son, Jean Baptiste,
was born. And this is where the Mandans and Hidatsas shared their food and knowledge
that helped the members of the expedition sirvive that first winter of 1804-180S at Fort
Mandan. From these great Indian people Lewis and Clark learned what was ahead of
them as they left Fort Mandan and entered unknown territory.  No one can tell the story
of Sakakawea, or the story of the Mandans and Hidatsas rich life along the Missourt,

better then North Dakota, It is a story that history bulfs will travel to learn about,

This is a story of national and internatronal interest. North Dakota will be a destination
for people who want to learn the history of Native People and commemorate the

expedition’s historic journey. History buffs live across this nation and across the seas,

Before you is a Lewis and Clark ad developed for print placement to reach this market,
For $9,600 we placed this ad in the AAA North Central Tour Book, We placed this ad in
the “Along the Trail with Lewis and Clark Travel Planner and Guide™ for $2.,100.
Currently, we don’t have the dollars to run an effective national print campaign to reach
our Lewis and Clark target market. We were not able to place ads in national magazines
where we could reach the travelers most likely to follow the Lewis and Clark
Trail...magazines that history buffs read. Historic Traveler has a circulation of 500,000,
One ad costs $19,000. One ad in American Heritage with a circutation of 340,000 costs

$25,160. One ad in National Geographic Traveler, circulation 466,000, costs $21,795. It

is not effective to run u one-time ad.

-~




Our research tells us that an increase in awareness of the commemoration and promotion
of sites and attractions along the trail can increase visitation within this target market. So
we trive used our limited Lewis and Clark marketing dollars primarily for a strategic
public refations effort to raise the awarcness of North Dakota’s place in history with the

Bicentennial Commemoration. We have been very successiul,

One example of our efforts is the Heritage Outbound Winter Adventure "Trip ut Fort
Mandan coming up on Junuary 20-21, This event is a collaborative effort of North
Dakota Tourism, State Historical Society of North Dakota, North Dakota Council of the
Arts the Three Affilinted Tribes, North Dakota Parks and Ree, Knife River Indian

Villages and the Lewis and Clark Interpretive Center.

This event was created to give people the opportunity to come to North Dakota and (o
recreate the winter experience of Lewis and Clark at Fort Mandan, [Uis a combination of
a challenging outdoor and enriching educational experience. We offered a program
where people can have the opportunity to learn Native traditions and culture directly from
members of the Three Alfilisted Tribes—the descendants of the Manduns and Hidatsas
that were here 200 years ago: the chance to explore the Dakota winter environment and
learn the natural history of the Missouri River and the chance (o steep themselves in the

history of Lewis and Clarks stay at Fort Mandan.

We were confident that history bufts and adventurists would find this a unique

opportunity. We wete also confident that the national media would find this a unigue




story. We were right. This coming weekend we have 25 people who have paid to
participate in this event...people who have paid to sleep outside during a North Dakota
winter, We have people from IL, MN, OR, WA, CA, NV and ND. Included in this
number are media participants from the Minneapolis Star Tribune, St. Louis-Post
Dispatch, and the LA Times. With very few dollars invested we will receive front-page
stories in all these papers, We will reach markets where we can not altord to place

advertising,

The Lewis and Clark story is & compelling one that captures the interest ol travelers and
media nationally and internationally. We have proven this. This is North Dakota's
oppurtunity to reach beyond our state borders and be forefront in national markets, The

Tourism Department will judicially spend the proposed Lewis and Clark marketing

budget increase in a mix of public relations and media placement, No step in our
marketing strategy will occur without research validating that our limited dollars are

having the greatest impact,

Here is a copy of a marketing plun that we had developed that shows how to most

effectively spend marketing dollars to reach our target market,




Lewis & Clark
Marketing
Funds

2001-2003
Estimate

Submitted by
North Dakota Tourism
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‘The following Information is (o serve as a planning reference for the
promotion of the Lewis & Clark Blcentennial Celebration. With the
exception of the 1999 and 2000 actual schedules, all other costs are
estimates. They are the media’s best prediction of future expenses given
the exlsting data as of September 2000. Depending upon the amount
of funding, and when the dollars are allocated, these numbers could
change. We have divided the promotional activities into three areas:
public relations, television and magazine,

1 Submitted by North Dakots Towrism
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An aggressive public relations effort is critical to the success of this cam-
paign. Recent research has told us that many people are not as familiar as
we would like about the Lewis and Clark Bicentennial Celebration and
consequently don’t understand the importance of the upcoming anniver-
sary. An organized effort to aggressively seek publicity in natlonal media
should cumulate in coverage which would address the above concern,

It is a very expensive proposition 1o attempt to educate people through
advertising. But soliciting articles in major publications is a way to educate
and promote at the same time. This method has proven in the past to be
an effective use of funds because the dollars invested have been returned
many times over when national publicity has been obtained.

Public Relations Recommendations
Dedicate $75,000 per year for public relations activities.

. This would include:

¢ Publicity solicitation

® FAM tours (bringing groups of editors and writers to
North Dakota to familiarize them with the area)

® '[tavel to conferences

L ® In-state travel

2 Submitied by Noeth Dakota Tourfsm
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Television advertising is an effective medium to use when your message
is visual and emotional. Because our message fits these criteria, and since
we have two previously produced, very high quality Lewis and Clark
television commercials, we would recommend using television as our
primary medium. However, as the chart below illustrates, $250,000 per
year does not go far when trying to reach our proximity markets.

K J.a_‘
NP YN
. . .

Market crp 1000 GRP's | DMA Audience Population
Minneapolis/St Paul ) $450 $450,000 1,353,800
Madison $100 $ 100,()()()“‘-“-". 195,300
Green Bay $80 $80,000 99,800
~lja(]rosse $45 $45,000 59,300
Wausau $40 $40,000 115,200
Marquette $40 $40,000 a 85,600
Omaha $110 $110,000 302,700
Sioux Falls $50 $50,000 75,500
Des Moines $80 $80,000 228,700
Sioux City $50 $50,000 48,500
Cedar Rapids $60 $60,000 82,500
Mankato $40 $40,000 42,700

*+*Based on an estimated :60 second CPP, Adults 25-54

See “Definitions” on page 7 to explain the meaning of several terms
used in the following discussion about television.

It is our recommendation that television be allocated at the 1000 point
level. This will ensure adequate levels of reach and frequency. With the
exception of Minneapolis, most of the listed markets have not had ongoing
exposure to any television message about North Dakota. We feel the 1000
point level is necessary to raise awareness and compete with the many
other travel related messages currently utilizing broadcast.

Costs per point range from $40 to $450 depending upon the market,

3 Submsttied by North Dakota Toutism
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This is a factor of market size, national rank, population, competition,
plus supply and demand. ‘The chart shows the huge difterence in popula:
tion between Minneapolis and Mankato, both DMAs are in Minnesota.
What it doesn't show is the fact that the Minneapolis market is in high
demand from advertisers. In 1999 and 2000, national and regional
“dot.com” advertisers competed for available television inventory and
dramatically increased the CPP,

Many regional buys are determined by market rank. This rank is deter-
mined by population. If advertisers cannot afford to buy everything,
they often start with the top ten, or top twenty markets in the country.
Minueapolis is ranked number fifteen. That again, is another reason
why the Minneapolis CPP is higher.

Television Recommendations

As you can see by the chart, we do not have nearly enough money to reach
all of our target proximity markets. It is much more effective 1o pick fewer
markets and be able to buy the levels of media which are effective than to
buy more markets at lower levels.

As a way to narrow down this target market to an area that we can afford,
we recommend a “Lewis and Clark Corridor” Strategy. We propose focus-
ing our television efforts on cities along the Missouri River including Sioux
Falls, South Dakota; Sioux City, lowa; and Omaha, Nebraska. We feel that
these are locations where there is already an interest in Lewis and Clark.
Also, because these citles are located on the river, we feel there will be
ample future publicity regarding the Lewis and Clark trip anniversary.
Our television will not have to do the “educating” but can do the
“persuading” instead. Because we do not have sufficient funds to reach
this area for two years, we would suggest delaying the television media
schedule until the second year of the biennium so that we can achieve
our target of 1000 GRPs.

This will also give us a year to concentrate on public relations and should

make the market more receptive to persuasion. We suggest another research
project to assess interest in Lewis and Clark along this river corridor,

‘Total cost for television: $210,000

4 Subnitted by Notth ket lourism
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Research has shown that the people most interested in Tewis & Clark
are history buffs and frequent travelers inan older demographic group.
To best capture that audience, we have selected several publications,
Those publications are listed below, along with their cost per insertion,

Historic Preservation

March/April 2001 issue will feature Midwest,

with specific articles on the Dakota's,

Cost for March/April 2001 Midwest Editlon $9,215
Circulation 210,000 Full Page, 4-Color CPM $43.90)

Historic Traveler
Estimated Circulation of 500,000 quarterly $19,000

| Full Page, 4-Color (CPM $38.00)
Trailer Life

. Midwestern Ldition, lull Page, 4-Color $13,055
Circulation 275,000 (CPM $47.50)
National Geographic
West Central Edition, Full Page, 4-Color $21,795
Circulation 466,000 (CPM $47.50)
Midwest Living

( Full Edition, Full Page, 4-Color $37,500
Circulation 815,000 (CPM $46.80)
American Heritage
Full Page, 4-Color $25,160
Circulation 340,000 (CPM $74.00)

* ¢+ All costs are estimates* **

Magazine Recommendations

Place full-page, four-color advertisements in the above. Tie the advertising

into as many “value-added” features as possible, including editorial cony,
. directories, free placement on magazine's web site, and inclusion into
k. other sections of the magazine which are related to travel destinations.

‘Total Magazine Cost: $140,000

5 Subamitted by North Dakota tounsm
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Public Relations $ 150,000
Television $210,000

Magazine $140,000
Total $500,();)—(-)_
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To help simplify the charts provided, we are including a briet
explanation of some standard media terms,

Reach: The percentage of different people exposed at least once to
an advertising message,

Frequency: The average number of times a member of the target
group Is exposed to an advertising message.

Reach times frequency equals gross rating points (GRPs). For example,
if 50% of your target audience saw your advertising message four times,
you would have 200 GRPs. A single rating polnt represents 1% of the
target population within the designated market.

Cost per point (CPP): The average cost within a given market to purchase
a single rating point. Broadcast markets are usually evaluated using a

cost per point for comparison. For example, the cost per point in the
Minneapolis market is $450, whereas the cost per point in Des Moines

is $80. So, obviously, you could buy the same amount of GRPs in Des
Moines much less expensively than in Minneapolis. This cost varies
depending upon the market size, rank, population and advertising
competition,

Designated Market Area (DMA): The geographic region designated by
the Nielsen Television Company for the purpose of measuring television
viewers. It includes a group of counties assigned to one market region.

Cost per thousand (CPM): The cost to reach a thousand people. This is

a term used most commonly in the magazine and newspaper industry.
The cost of a standard ad size (usually a full page, 4-color magazine ad)

is divided by the circulation in thousands. The circulation is reflective of
actual copies of the magazine and does not include pass-along readership.

7 Subnitted by North Dakatt faurism




Testimony of Sara Otte Coleman:
Bismarck-Mandan Convention and Visitors Bureau

1600 Burnt Boat Drive 701.222:4308
House Blll No, 1022 ND Tourism Department Bucdget

| am sure | am not alone In asking you to appropriate more moriey. We are
all happy to see an increase for marketing the Lewis and Clark
Bicentennial, however that money is not enough, The Tourism Department
needs addltional dollars to fund out-of-state marketing. Our flat budget
does not allow us to educate psople on the unique treasures our state has
to offer. Not only have we not kept up with other states (our ranking is 49"
in spending), but aiso a recent survey shows that out of 83 clties, 65 have
annual tourism marketing budgets larger than our entire state. Although
we do not expect to ever reach Las Vegas's annual budget of $127.7
mitlion, our state should be able to compete with cities like: Cleveland's
$8.2 million, Denver's $6.7 million and Buffalo’s $3.1 million,

We are at a critical time for North Dakota, a time when Agriculture and
Energy are not enough, a time when tourism is growing and ND is well
positioned to see major growth, We need to look at tourism spending as an
investment, Last year you spent $ 2.19 million dollars for a return on your
investment of over 1 billion dollars. Investing in the tourism industry is
economic development, but the beauty is that this is economic
development for the entire state not just one community, | cannot think of
another investment that has more potential to reach more North Dakotans
than increased tourism. Every corner of North Dakota will benefit,
According to Precision Marketing of Fargo, state sales and gas taxes
generated by visitors to ND was $73.7 million in 1998,

During our statewide Tourism Alliance Partnership (TAP) meetings, the
number one concern from all 6 meetings was increased dollars for out-of-
state marketing. Our State CVB association has adopted a goal of a $2
million increase.

Tourism is the fastest growing industry in the world. One in eight
Americans Is employed in the tourism industry. The cities of North Dakota
have been successful In increasing their budgets and increasing visitation.
In Bismarck-Mandan, we have been very successful in bringing large groups
like the Airstream rallies, the Women's Bowling Tournament and next years
World Curling Championships, Last year alone we booked 188 national
groups that will bring in 84,000 out-of.state visitors to ND. | hope you will
see that now it is the States turn to invests more in tourism.
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January 15, 2001

M Chairman and committee members,

We're here today o talk about the product that brings 1.3 of' the economic impact to the
state of ND. Tourism - out third largest industry. It is our third largest industry, yet we
are the least traveled state in the US. We have so much potential for economic yrowth
through tourism it is hardly imaginable! The least traveled state, vet it still supplies 13
of our economic impact.

The ND Tourism department is NID's promotional department. It is their job to market
ND! You understand the implications of promoting a business. The cost of advertising
out of state is unbelievable. Yet marketing in state does little to improve the economy of’

our state, instead it just spreads it around!

It cannot be that we do not believe in ourselves. We know that ND is not in the middle of
no where - We're in the middle of evervwhere! We are the heart of Ecotourism!

Ecotourism is tourism that is based upon the natural rather than the synthetic attractions
of a locality. It is nature at its best. It is what ND represents, Eco tourism is the tourist
industry’s most rapidly expanding sector (Alpine, 1986; Groom et al., 1991) A number of
states and local communities in the US have come to recognize ecotourism as a
significant facet of their economic strategy. [n several western states it has become the

largest private employer (Vickerman 1988).

Ecotourism is our valleys; rolling plains of suntlowers, our untouched lands, walking and
biking trails, fresh air you want to bottle and drive by shootings which are people pulling
over to take pictures. Ecotourisin is our fog that freezes and our ice that cracks, vet is
safe to drive on! Ecotourism is our Badlands (which consumers of tourism. due to our

lack of marketing dollars, believe to be in SD)

Can you imagine what would happen if our state had a budget comparable to our
neighboring states? A budget that would supply us with the funds necessary to market
out of state, with a repetition to our message intensive enough to be heard.

Allow me to repeat my opening message - We're here today to talk about the product that
brings 1/3 of the economic impact to the state of ND. Tourism — our third largest
industry. It is our third largest industry, yet we are the least traveled state in the US. We
have so much potential for economic growth through tourism it is hardly imaginable!
The least traveled state, yet it still supplies 1/3 of our economic impact?
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A markeler knows that a message must reach the consumer a minimum of three times
before it is truly heard. The previous paragraph repeated “Least traveled state and NDS
third laruest industry™ three times so thatl you would hear it PLEASIE inerease the
marketing budget of the NI Tourism department giving them the financial means lo
repeat the message - - - a message that's worth being heard.

Thank vou for your patience and interest invan industry that is important 1o all o' ND
Afer repeating it six times in this presentation I'm confident you'se received the
message!

Sincerely,

‘WWM

Mdrsha Dupie’
Executive Director
Minot Convention and Visttors Bureau
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Testimony of Allan Stenehjem, State Tourism Director
Senate Appropriations Committee
HB 1022

Mr. Chairman and members of the commiittee, | am Allan Stonehjem, Director of
Tourism for North Dakota and I'm here in support of House Bill 1022 which provides a
general fund appropriation for defraying the expenses and opportunity costs of the State
Tourism Department. Our appropriation as originally intreduced in the House provided
us 100 percent of the funds we currently recoive plus enhancements for marketing the

Lewis and Clark Bicentennial, Let me start by explaining the changes made by the Housc

so that [ am talking about the engrossed bill passed by the House. ,
1, The House removed the grant line item of $30,000 and transferred it to the
department’s line item. The grant was previously provided to the Greater North
Dakota Association for publication of the North Dakota Horizons magazine,

2. They made a minor change for the motion picture development office. Current
law required the Director to appoint an advisory board. This simply changes
shall to may appoint an advisory board.

3. They added language to provide that the director may obtain copyright or
trademark protection for any item used to promote tourism in ND,

4, They also increased the appropriation for the Lewis & Clark Bicentennial by
$750,000.
I am sure you are all aware of the huge opportunity we now have before us with the
approaching commemoration of the Lewis & Clark Corps of Discovery Bicentennial,
Our current budget request is for an increase of $531,868 over last biennium’s budget.
The House added an additional $750,000 over our original request for Lewis & Clark
promotion, bringing the total Lewis & Clark appropriation to $1,405,863. The budget

increase is timely and appropriate and will allow us to take advantage of this unique




opportunity that now exists for North Dakota. Joanne Burke, Deputy Director of the
Tourism Department will go into further detail on specific activities the Department will
be doing rolative to Lewis & Clark. The increase in funding for Lewis & Clark will:
» Provide continued funding for one position to be involved with the
Lewis & Clark Bicentennial promotion.
¢ Provide funding to implement the agency’s marketing plan
specifically related to Lewis & Clark.
Tourism is North Dakota’s third largest industry. There are nearly 20,000 jobs generated
directly or indirectly by the tourism industry. Total visitor expenditures are over the one
billion-dollar mark annually. State sales tax revenue directly attributable to tourism is

over $30 miilion annually and gasoline tax receipts are over $42 million annually.

Tourism is a growing industry in North Dakota. ‘Tourism is also a growing industry

nationally and internationally, The Travel Industry Association of America projects that
expenditures by national and international travelers will exceed $549 billion in 2000, an
increase of over 65 percent since 1990. In order for North Dakota to expand its tourism

industry we need to have a strong presence in this competitive national and international

market.

Tourism is made up of attractions such as Medora, the International Peace Garden, The
National Buffalo Museum Dinosaur Museum, Custer House, On-A-Slant Indian Village,
the Lewis and Clark Interpretive Center and Fort Union. Tourism is also made up of

small businesses throughout the state. . .businesses in rural North Dakota....working




ranches, guides, outfltters, bed and breakfasts, hotels, marinas, horseback riding
concessionaires, restaurants, canoe rentals to name just a few. All these attractions and
businoesses depend on tourists. There is no way they can individually afford to do the

advertising to be competitive in a global market. We aro the state’s marketing agent,

The Tourism Department spends its $3.2 million marketing budget promoting the North
Dakota tourism industry, To be offective with these dollars the Tourism Department
identifies markets that can be influenced with an effective campaign...markets that we
can influence to see North Dakota as a travel destination, Current research tells us that
70 percent of people travel within 500 miles of their home. For North Dakota that
includes the Minneapolis/ St. Paul metropolitan area with a population base of nearly one
million people. This is a market that we arc not able to effectively penetraie with the

limited resources we have. It would cost us $900,000 per biennium to run an effective

television campaign.

What we have successfully done is be very diligent with our marketing dollars and

identi{ied markets that we can influence to make North Dakota a travel destination,




February 20, 2001

Chalrman and Senators

My name is Jeff Altizer and | am here to support HB 1022 . | would like to visit wiln you
about why you should make this investment in tourlsm and what the return on your
Investment will be. You all have heard that the tourism Industry Is the state's third
largest Industry and provides a great number of jobs for our state. By now you know
that the approaching Lewis and Clark Bicentennial will bring many new visitors to our

‘state over the next six years. | can't tell you exactly how many visitors North Dakota
should expect because we as a state have not invested in that research, However the
state of Montana has made that investment, and thelr research shows that Montana
can expect 8.9 million additional visitors above the current level of visitation over the
next six years. Thats an average of 1.5 milllon visitors per year. |f you assume that
North Dakota's level of visitation Is similar and that those visitors are in famlly groups
of 2.4 people per group thats an average of 625,000 additional hotel rooms per year,
Hotel rooms in Williston average $45 per night at that rate the Lewis and Clark
Bicentennial should generate an additional $28 million dollars in hotel room sales per
year. The addltional sales tax generated would be $1.4 million per year.

"‘Of course these figures are probably low because we would expect that visitors to our
" state will stay more than one night and hotel rooms in the major centers like Bismarck
are higher cost then they would be in Williston. In addition these flgures do not include

any food, gas, or retail sales.

In supporting HB 1022 | believe that the Lewis and Clark Bicentennial and the tourism
iIndustry in general is a good Investment for our state. | hope you will support this
Investment in our future by supporting HB 1022 .




e LIB w22

Q/% 4%4/3’ (:’:-}//*" ,o;‘./v,:‘/‘
77 /4 < /7

The Institute for Tourism and Recreation Research
School of Forestry
The University of Montana
Missoula, MT 59812
(406) 243-5686
www foresiry umt edu/er

e L g et et R A e prm e e Bt e

Title of Report: Lewis & Clark National Estimation and Awareness Study
Report Number: Research Report 76
Authors: Issues & Answers Network, Inc.
Month Published: May 2000
Executive Summary
Objectives
¢ Determine the level of awareness that exists for the Lewis and Clark Expedition.
o Establish a benchmark of interest in attending the bicentennial celebration to be held in
Montana.
Provide an estimate of the number of potential visitors to Montana for the event.
Determine profile of potential visitors and where these visitors are most likely to go in the

state.

Methodology
The Institute for Tourism and Recreation Research, administrator of the University Travel Research

Program, on behalf of Montana's Tourism Advisory Council contracted with Issues & Answers
Network, ‘nc., to conduct a national telephone survey in January.2000. A nationally projectable
sampling of the continental U.S. less Montana was interview. A total of 2,020 interviews were
conducted with adults at least 21 years old. The data were weighted to national gender, race, and

age statistics.

Results: Visitor Projections
Montana should expect a total of 8.9 million additional visits for the Lewis & Clark Bicentennial

Commemoration in addition to the "base" visitation that would normally be expected. This increase

could occur in one of two ways:
1. 1If all the increase takes place in 2005 and 2006, the anniversary of the Expedition in

Montana, visitation levels would be 16.1 million in 2005 and 14.6 million in 2006 given
that 60% of the increase occurs during 2005 when the most "adventurous" encounters took

place.
2. If all the increase takes place over the years 2003-2006 with 40% in 2003-2004 and 60% in

2005-2006, expectations amount to 11.7 million in 2003, 12.7 in 2004, 14 million in 2005,
and 13.2 million in 2006,




While these projections may be hard to grasp when viewed on an annual basis, discussing them in
light of the travel season puts them into the perspective. Based on a June 1 through October 31
visitation season with the 4-year projection from above, increases over "base" visitation would be

as follows:

T Additional Individuals Additional Groups
o Statewide - Statewide*

Year Total Season |  Per Day | Total Season { Per Day |
. PN IR e

2003 1.4 million 9,150 583 thousand 3,813
2004 2.1 million 14,379 875 thousand 5,991
2005 “ | 32million | 20915 [ 13 million | 8715
2006 2.1 million 14,379 875 thousand 5,991

' * Based on a group size of 2.4 people.
Results: Profile of Lewis & Clark Visitors

o 48% were male and 52% were female, which is nearly identical to the US population.

e 52% had children in the household, compared to only 38% of the US population with
children in the household. This suggests that family groups may be common Lewis & Clark
travelers.

79% were Caucasian, compared with 81% of the US population.

18% reside in the Northeast, 44% in the South, 17% in the Mid-West, and 22% in the West.
This is compared with US population residences, which are 20% Northeast, 38% South,
20% Mid-West, and 22% West. Southerners appear to be more likely to attend Lewis &
Clark Bicentennial events in Montana than groups from other areas.

. s Respondents 41-50 years old expressed more interest in visiting Montana for Lewis & Clark
Bicentenntal events that other groups, with 26% of those very likely to attend falling into
this age category compared to 21% of the US population. 20% of those very likely to attend
were 21-30 years old, 24% were 31-40 years old, 15% were 51-60 years old, and 15% were
61 years or older.

o Surprisingly, there was no gradient of likelihood exhibited among income levels.
Respondents very likely to attend Lewis & Clark Bicentennial events in Montana nearly
mirrored the US population in terms of household income, with 20% making $30,000 or
less, 16% with $30,000 to $45,000, 13% with $45,000-$60,000, 14% with $60,000-
$90,000, and 13% with more than $90,000.

Implications

o It is more successful to plan for a managed event than to plan for the unknown, Marketing
and infrastructure go hand-in-hand for managing this event successfully. Montana should do
all it can to disperse visitation over the years 2003-2006 and throughout the state in order to
reduce social and environmental impacts.

o Marketing is the key to dispersion - visitors must be persuaded to come to Montana during
all four years and to visit all areas of the state. This will disperse the positive economic
impacts while avoiding concentration of negative environmental impacts. Marketing will
"shape the Lewis & Clatk Bicentennial visitation and provide event organizers with a plan
for how the Bicentennial will proceed.

¢ Beef-up infrastructure along the trail, especially in rural Montana, to provide services to
additional visitors. This should be done according to the marketing objectives of the state so

. that services are situated in appropriate areas at appropriate times,




Limitations of the Study
e The anniversary of the Expedition in Montana is still five years away - a lot can happen!
e This is the first Lewis & Clark research to be conducted. Estimates may be revised as more
research occurs.
See the full text for more information - downloadable free of charge at
www. foresiry.umt.edu/itrr.
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House BIll No. 1022 ND Tourism Department Budget

We are all happy to see an increase for marketing the Lewis and Clark Bicentennial,

“however that money is not enough. The Tourism Department needs additional dollars

to fund out-of-state marketing. Our flat budget does not allow us to educate people on
the unique treasures our state has to offer. Not only have we not kept up with other
states (our ranking is 40" in spending), but also a recent survey shows that out of 83
cities, 65 have annual tourism marketing budgets larger than our entire state.
Although we do not expect to ever reach Las Vegas's annual budget of $127.7 million,
our state should be able to compete with cities like: Cleveland's $8.2 million, Denver's
$6.7 million and Buffalo's $3.1 million.

We are at a critical time for North Dakota, a time when Agriculture and Energy are not
enough, a time when tourism is growing and ND Is well positioned to see major growth,
We need to look at tourism spending as an investment. Last year you spent $2.19
million dollars for a return on your investment of over 1 billion dollars. Investing in the
tourism industry is economic development, but the beauty is that this is economic
development for the entire state not just one community. | cannot think of another
Investment that has more potential to reach more North Dakotans than increased
tourlsm.  According to Precision Marketing of Fargo, state sales and gas taxes
generated by visitors to ND was $73.7 million In 1998,

During our statewide Tourism Alllance Partnership (TAP) meetings, the number one
concern from all 6 meetings was increased dollars for out-of-state marksting. Our State
CVB assoclation has adopted a goal of a $2 milllon Increase. We need dollars to
Implement as long-term advertising program almed at delivering visitors and dollars to

your constituents.

Tourlsm Is the fastest growing Industry in the world. One In eight Americans is
employed In the tourism industry, The citles of North Dakota have been successful in
Increasing their budges and Increasing visitation. in Blsmarck-Mandan, we have been
very successful in bringing large groups like the Altstream rallles, the Women'’s Bowling
Tournament and next years World Curling Champlonships. Last year alone we booked
188 national groups that will bring in 84,000 out-of-state visitors to ND | hope you will
see that now it Is the States turn to invest more in tourism.
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Bismarck-Mandan.

Genuine Dakota

Why should you increase Tourism spending by $2 million?

¢ North Dakota Ranked 49" in spending for Tourism development.

e A $2 million increase will bring us up to 49",

o In a recent survey of 85 cities - 65 cities outspent ND in tourism
marketing

« Research shows that taxes paid by visitors will \allow the state to
recoup the dollars spent in the same year.

o Nearly 20,000 North Dakotans earn their living in the Tourism
Industry.

o Tourism is North Dakota's 37 largest industry and growing.

‘ ¢ Tourism is the fastest growing industry in the world.

o Tourism is Economic Development: Visitors spent! 1.12 billion in
1999,

¢ Increase spending on tourism results in Economic Development for
all of North Dakota not selective communities.

o Return on Investment: by spending $2.19 million you net $1.12
billion for our state.

¢ N.D. has the products that are of interest to potential visitors.
o We can't afford to miss the opportunity to Grow North Dakota

e The Lewis and Clark Trail commemoration will allow N.D. to be the
destination.
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